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Dear Shareholders

Introduction

Great Quest Metals Ltd and other junior

exploration companies in 2008 were working under

backdrop of plummeting share prices falling

prices of commodities and very negative

environment in the major stock markets In this

setting the efforts of junior companies were

concentrated on surviving the year and working

towards the future

Great Quests attention in 2008 and subsequently

in 2009 has been directed towards identifying joint

venture partners for some of its properties and also

assessing possible new acquisition with the

objective of early production Great Quest has been

successful in finding an ideal partner for its Kenieba

area gold concessions Avion Resources Corp and

recently signed Letter of Intent which gives Avion

the option to acquire 75% of Great Quests interests

in four concessions in western Mali West Africa

In February 2009 Avion re-started the Tabakoto

mill which is in the Tabakoto-Segala block of

concessions adjacent to the Kenieba concessions

In addition the Company is considering joint

venture possibility for its Taseko property in British

Columbia

Great Quest has been in discussions with the Malian

Government for several months on the possible

purchase of the Tilemsi phosphate project This

project consists of plant and three deposits

Following the acquisition of the Tilemsi project

Great Quest would expect to start production within

six to nine months The joint venture on the

Kenieba concession will allow the Company to

concentrate its energy on bringing the Tilemsi

project to production

In 2008 Great Quest closed private placement

with proceeds of $360000 and to date in 2009
closed two private placements with proceeds of

$237000

Kenieba Gold Concession

In his report in early 2008 Carl Verley P.Geo
increased the N143-101 compliant inferred mineral

resource in the Djambaye gold zone on the

Companys Kenieba concession to 324000 ounces

of gold based on results of the 2007 drill program
This resource equates to 2574000 tonnes of 3.92

grams per tonne gold or 10.08 tonnes of gold

Great Quest expanded its holdings in the area in

2008 by acquiring the square kilometre Comifa

concession which is west of and adjacent to the

Kenieba concessions The Comifa concession

covers an area with extensive gold soil anomalies

The Kenieba concession is south of and adjacent to

Avions Tabakoto-Segala concessions where gold

zones similar to that of the Djambaye occur In

February 2009 Avion returned the Tabakoto mill to

production with forecast of 66000 ounces of gold

production for 2009 rising to 101400 ounces of

gold in 2012 On April 21 2009 Great Quest and

Avion announced Letter of Intent between the two

companies whereby Avion has the option to acquire

75% interest in Great Quests ownership of

concessions in the Kenieba area by paying

$2500000 to Great Quest and completing

$2000000 of work on the concessions over

years Great Quest holds 95% interest in the

Kenieba Comifa and Baroya concessions and

100% interest in the Kenieba Est concession The

first payment of $400000 is due on signing

definitive agreement and is subject to successful

due diligence by Avion and regulatory approval

The Tilemsi Phosphate Project

The Tilemsi phosphate project gives Great Quest

unique opportunity to be in production in 2009 It

consists of three phosphate deposits and plant

capable of producing 36000 tonnes of phosphate

fertilizer per year According to preliminary

assessment by Merit Consulting the present scale

of operation could produce cash flow of

$3600000 per year
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The Tilemsi Phosphate Project continued

To begin negotiations to acquire the Tilemsi project

with the Government Great Quest was required to

deposit $250000 in Malian bank which was

recently done The amount of $180000 of the

required deposit was raised through short-term

debenture with terms which require the Company to

issue 225000 bonus shares subject to the approval

of the TSX Venture Exchange Negotiations on

other terms of the acquisition agreement are

scheduled to commence shortly

Great Quest also intends to negotiate loans to

complete the payment on the project and to begin to

bring the project to an operating level Merit

Consultants estimates that production could start

within six months of successful completion of the

acquisition

The historical resource of the Tainaguilelt deposit

alone is 11350000 tonnes of 27% of P2 05 As that

study predates NI 43-10 it must be declared that

the potential quantity and grade is conceptual in

nature there has been insufficient exploration to

define mineral resource and it is uncertain that

further exploration will result in the target being

delineated as mineral resource Further work on

the Tamaguilelt Chanamaguel and Tin Hina

deposits is expected to significantly increase this

estimate

The initial operation would consist of mining the

phosphate rock which occurs on the surface of the

Tamaguilelt deposit trucking it 100 kilometres to

the plant pulverizing it bagging it and selling it

within Mali While the world-wide price of

fertilizer has dropped significantly in the last

months the price has remained stable in Mali One

reason is the high cost of transportation to bring the

fertilizer to Mali from countries in Asia and Europe

Bourdala Concessions

Great Quest plans program of pitting and

sampling on the 72 square kilometre Bourdala

concessions western Mali in preparation for

RAB drill program to test for possible large

tonnage low grade gold deposit

Taseko Copper-Gold-Molybdenum Property

Great Quest holds 100% interest in the Taseko

property located 225 kilometres north of

Vancouver BC and 20 km south of the Prosperity

copper-gold property held by Taseko Mines The

results of the 2007 drill program and second drill

program of 1547 metres in 2008 have been

announced The goal of the two programs was to

define the trend of molybdenum mineralization

found north of the Empress deposit and first drilled

in 1991 Hole 91-49 This hole intersected 133

metres of 0.027% molybdenum The best hole in

the two programs was Hole 07-60 70 metres

northeast of Hole 91-49 which intersected 75.9

metres of 0.027% molybdenum The trend of

mineralization appears to be northeast-southwest

The drill programs on the Empress copper-gold

deposit were focused to the east and northeast of the

deposit where copper-gold mineralization was

found to continue but at lower grade

In 1991 pre-feasibility study on the Empress

deposit by James Askew and Associates Inc

Mining Geological and Geochemical Engineers

estimated in situ resources of 11078000 tons of

0.6 1% copper and 0.023 ounces per ton gold at

cut-off grade of 0.40% copper using prices of $1.00

per pound copper and $400 per ounce gold The

study was commissioned by ASARCO

Incorporated Great Quests joint partner at the

time As that study predates NI 43-101 it must be

declared that the potential quantity and grade is

conceptual in nature there has been insufficient

exploration to define mineral resource and it is

uncertain that further exploration will result in the

target being delineated as mineral resource

The Company is currently in discussions about

possible joint venture with other parties Work is

not required until 2010 to keep the claims in good

standing
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The Exploration Team

Planning for and supervision of the projects in Mali

is carried out by Mahamadou Keita M.Sc Geo
Willis Osborne M.Sc Geo and Carl Verley

Geo. Planning for and supervision
of the

Taseko project in British Columbia was carried out

by Jay Page Geo and Willis Osborne Carl

Verley and Jay Page are Independent Qualified

Persons under National Instrument 43-101

Overview ofPerformance

During the fiscal year 2008 the Companys assets

decreased by $274401 to $6386185 This is

mainly due to the $403719 in cash paid towards

operating expenses $660027 total operating

expense less non-cash expenditures amortization of

$386 and stock-based compensation of $138294

and the $117628 in cash used to pay down the

accounts payable The above decrease in assets was

offset by the increase in assets arising from the

issuance of shares $360000 raised during the year

in private placement and the $29000 acquisition

of the Comifa concession During the Fourth

Quarter of fiscal year 2008 the Companys assets

increased by $1268

The Companys working capital decreased by

$1023661 from working capital of $494792 at

the end of fiscal year 2007 to working capital

deficit of $528869 at the end of fiscal year 2008

This is mainly due to $777368 being spent on the

Taseko Property and the $498221 in cash used to

pay down the accounts payable primarily related to

the 2007 drill program in fiscal year 2008 but was

offset by the $360000 private placement

compared to net loss of $1138449 or $0.06 per

share in fiscal year 2007 This represents

decrease in net loss of $881211 The main reasons

for the decrease is due to $443066 future income

tax recovery resulting from the renouncing of

monies under the flow through share offerings

completed in the prior year $318694 reduction in

stock-based compensation expense and $269492

reduction in loss on write-off of mineral properties

This was partially offset by $110520 being spent

on project examination costs related to the

acquisition of the Tilemsi Phosphate Project and the

$56846 loss on foreign exchange resulting from

trade payables being held in Malian dollars

The decrease in stock-based compensation is the

result of reduction in the fair value of the options

granted in fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscal year

2007 The fair value of options in the prior year

was $0.41 compared to $0.06 in the current year

The main reason for the decrease is the drop in the

Companys share price In calculating stock-based

compensation the lower the stock price the lower

the fair value of the stock options The foreign

exchange loss is the result of Company trade

payable being held in Malian dollars With the

recent decrease in the strength of the Canadian

dollar versus the Malian dollar the Company

realized foreign exchange loss of $56846

The net loss for the fourth quarter was $221367 or

$0.017 per share The main reason for the net loss

was the stock-based compensation expense related

to the December options granted the foreign

exchange loss recorded and the cost related to the

Tilemsi Project

Results of Operations

The Companys operations consist of the

exploration and development of mineral

concessions in Mali and Canada the maintenance

of head office in Canada and the maintenance of

an operations office in Mali The net loss for the

fiscal year 2008 was $257238 or $0.01 per share

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the fiscal year 2008 the Company had the

following share capital transactions

The Company issued 100000 shares at

deemed price of $0.29 for the acquisition of the

Comifa concession for total consideration of

$29000

Annual Report to Shareholders for the Year Ended December 31 2008
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Liquidity and Capital Resources continued

The Company completed Private Placement

consisting of 3000000 units at price of $0.12

per unit for total consideration of $360000

Each unit consists of one share and one-half of

transferable share purchase warrant Each full

share purchase warrant is exercisable to acquire

one additional share at price of $0.20 per

share on or before June 18 2009 All shares

issued under this private placement were

subject to hold period and could not be traded

until October 19 2008 The Company paid

finders fee of $12767 and agents fees of

106400 transferable agents warrants with

fair value of $7419 Each agents warrant is

exercisable to acquire one share at price of

$0.20 per share on or before June 18 2009

Summary of Quarterly Results

Selected consolidated financial information for the

last 12 quarters is as follows

Quarter Revenue Net income loss
Net earnings

loss_per_share

2008 195 377228 0.017
20083 2900 126375 0.004
2008 5752 211809 0.008
20o81d $7722 458174 0.017

2007 4th 7713 410247 0.0 17
2007 3rd 5682 107964 0.005

2007 2Q 1862 $488811 0.025

2007 526 131427 0.007

2006 4th 1874 88934 0.005

2006 3rd 2625 98736 0.005
2006 2562 31 1681 0.017

2006 1Q 161 55418 0.003

Related Party Transactions

During the fiscal year 2008 the Company incurred

expenses for management fees totalling $39600

2007 $32300 to corporation related to the

Company by the CEO of the Company $33000

2007 $23250 to corporation related to the

Company by the CFO of the Company office and

general fees totalling $37108 2007 $24716 and

fees related to new project costs totalling $2400

2007 $Nil to Director of the Company and

accounting fees totalling $11629 2007 $6606
and consulting fees totalling $20186 2007

14569 to the Secretary of the Company

Investor Relations

During 2008 the Company continued its investor

program and participated in investor conferences

The Company participated in the Prospectors

Developers Conference in Toronto in March

Great Quest is planning more active investor

program in the second half of 2009 as market

conditions improve

George Butterworth is the Companys investor

relations representative Mr Butterworth liaises

with the investment community and communicates

with investors and shareholders about the

Companys projects and progress Additional

information can be viewed online on SEDAR and at

www.greatquest.com

DATED May 21 2009

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF GREAT QUEST METALS LTD

Willis Osborne

Fiscal Year 2008 2007 2006

Revenue 16569 15783 7223

Net loss 257238 1138449 554769

Loss per share 0.01 0.06 0.03
Total Assets 6386185 6660586 3637533

Willis Osborne

President Director

Summary of Annual Results
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Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of

Great Quest Metals Ltd

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Great Quest Metals Ltd as at December 31 2008 and

2007 and the consolidated statements of operations comprehensive loss and deficit and cash flows for the

years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards Those standards

require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation

In our opinion these consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of the Company as at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the resuits of its operations and its cash flows

for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

MacKay LLP

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver Canada

April 20 2009

mackay.ca refers to the Canadian firm MacKay LLP
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2008 2007

Assets

Current

Cash

Tern deposits note

Goods and services tax recoverable

Exploration tax credit recoverable

Prepaid expenses

7339
20716

5638
31978

4655

190079

907176

70886

19868

Due from director note

Due from African Metals Corporation note

Automobile equipment and furniture note

Mineral properties including deferred cost note

DeposIts

70326

533

2548

5864

6298500

8414

6386185

1188011

428

29797

8378

5425558

8414

6660588

Liabilities

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to related parties note

497925

101180

599105

670112

23107

893219

Share Capital and Deficit

Share capitel note

Share subscription advance

Contributed surplus note

Deficit

10090396

5000

1.151.244

5465562

5787010

8386185

10164160

1.011.531

5208324

5967367

6680586

Nature of business and operations note

Subsequent events note 15

On behalf of the Board

Wi/is Oaborne Director

VctoiJ.E Jones Director

Great Quest Metals Ltd

Consolidated Statements of Operations Comprehensive Loss and Deficit

For the
year

ended December 31 2008 2007

Expenses

Accounting and audit note 10
Amortation

Bank charges

Consulting note 10
Flow through tax

Investor relations

Legal

Management fees note 10
Newprojectcosta-lilemsi

Office and general note 10
Other directors fees Barbados

Promotion travel and shareholder relations

Rent

Securities and brokerage fees

sock-based compensation note

Telephone and communication

Write-of of mineral çzopertiea note

60265
366

631

20186
16576

24500

27795
72600

110520

55475

6936
48537

41987
23320

138294

8533

3486

60065

552

1065
14569

46000

40052
55550

59873

78278

20604
40035

456988

7623
272978

Other Items

Loss on foreign exchange

Interest income

660027

56846

16569

1154232

15783
Loss for the

year
before taxes

Income taxee

Future Income tax recovery note 11

700304

443066

1138449

Net and comprehensive os for the year 257238 1138449

Deficit beginning of year 5208324 4069875

Deficit end of year 5465562 5206324

Basic and diluted loss per share 0.01 0.06

Weighted average common shares outstandIng 28623247 20629528

The attached notes form an Integral part of these tnancial statements
The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Deferred Exiloratlon Costs

For the year ended December 31 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007

Operating activities

Net loss for the year 257238 1138449

Adjustments

Amortization

Write-off of mineral properties

Stock-based compensation

Lose on foreign exchange

Future income tax recovery

386

3486
138294

56846

443066

552

272978

456988

Changes in non-cash wrking capital items

Goods and services tax recoverable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

501292

65248
15213

20443

441274

407931

68260
15034

12655

478570

Financing activfties

Due to related parties

Issue of share capital for cash

Share ssue costs net of recovery

Share aubecripilon advance

78073
360000

12277
5000

430796

272

3292038

171338

3120972

investing activities

Due from African Metals Corporation

Due from dIrector

Exploration tax credit recoverable

Acquisition costs of mineral properties

Deferred exploration costs net of amortization

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

27249

105
31978
32227

813073
208457

1058591

20273
26313

86428
2073479

570887

1.582980

Loss on foreign currency cash balances 133

Increase decrease In cash and cash equIvalents 1069202 1.059422

Cash and cash equIvalents beginning of year 1097257 37835

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 28055 1097257

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of

Cash

Term deposits

7339

20716

28055

190079

907178

1097257

Income taxes pad

Interest paid

Supplemental cash flow Information note 13

Mali Canada Total

Exploration costs

Amortization

Drilling reclamation and assays

Exploration surveys

Licenclng/perrnlt
fees

Office consulting and travel note 10

2128 2128

13393 775454 788847

31315 100 31415
1178 1814 2992

21797 21797

Total costs incurred during the year 69811 777368 847179

Exploration tax credit recoverable 31978 31978

Balance beginnIng of year 3271433

3341244

1020352

1765742

4291785

5106986

Less write-off of exploration costs

Balance end of year 3341244 1765742 5106986

For the year ended December 31 2007

Mali Canada Total

Exploration costs

Amortization

Dnlhng reclamation and assays

Exploration surveys

Office consulting and travel

3038 3038

1016872 925115 1941987

32692 91265 123957

3563 3972 7535

Total costs incurred during the year 1056165 1020352 2076517

Balance begInnIng of year 2351858 2351858

3408023 1020352 4428375

Less write-off of exploration costs

Balance end of year

136590 136590

3271433 1020352 4291785

The attached notes form an integral part of these finanoal statements The attached notes form an integral part of these financal statements
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Notes to the Cnn.II4..$.d Flnrn..lI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007 December 31 2008 and 2007

Nature of Busines and Operatlona

Great Quest Metals Ltd the Company an exploration stage company was Incorporated under the

British Columbia Business Corporations Act Its principal business activities are the exploration and

development of mineral properties located in Canada and Africa

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and

discharge Its abilities in the normal course of business rather than through process of forced

liquidation The operations of the Company were primarily funded by the ssue of share capital and
loans from related parties The continued operations of the Company are dependent on its ability to

develop sufficient financing plan receive continued financial support from related parties complete
sufficient public equity financing or generate profitable operations in the future The Company had the

following deficits and working capital deficiency as at the following dates which cast substantial doubt

about the Companys ability to continue as going concern

December 31 2008 5465562 528779
December 31 2007 5208324 494792

SIgnIfIcant Accounting Policies

Mineral properties and deferred exploration coats

Mineral properties consist of exploration and mining concessions options and contracts

Acquisition and exploration costs are capitalized arid deferred until such time as the property is

put into production or the
property is disposed of either through sale or abandonment If put

Into production the costs of acquisition and exploration will be written off over the life of the

property based on estimated economic reserves Proceeds received from the sale of any
interest in property wit be credited against the carrying value of the

property with any excess

included in operations for the period If property is abandoned the acquisition and deferred

exploration costs will be written off to operations

Although the Company has taken stepe to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an

interest in accordance with
industry norms for the current stage of exploration of such

properties these procedures do not guarantee the Companys title Property may be subject to

unregistered prior agreements or inadvertent non-compliance with regulatory requirements

Management reviews capitalized costs on its mineral properties on an annual basis and will

recognize impairment in value based upon current exploration results and upon managements
assessment of the future probability of profitable revenues from the property or sale of the

property

Exploration Costs renounced due to flow-through share subscription agreements remain

capitalized however for corporate income tax purposes the Company has no right to claim

these coats as tax deductible expenses

Recorded costs of mineral properties and deferred exploration and development costs are not

Intended to reflect present or future values of mineral properties The recorded costs are

subjeci to measurement uncertainty and it Is reasonably possible based on existing knowledge

that changes in future conditions could lequlie matenal chanye in the recognized amount

The Company records minerals exploration tax credits on an accrual basis

SIgnificant Accounting Policies Continued

Share capital flow-through shares

The Company provides certain share subscribers with flow-through component for tax

benefits available on qualifying Canadian exploration expenditures Upon renunciation to the

sharehokiers the Company reduces share capital and records future income tax liability for

the amount of the tax deduction renounced to shareholders In instances where the Company

has sufficient deductible temporary differences available to offset the future income tax liability

created from renouncing qualifying expenditures the realization of the deductible temporary

differences will be shown as recovery
in operations In the period of renunciation

Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recognized for the expected obligations related to the

retirement of long-lived tangible assets that arise from the acquisition construction

development or normal operation of such assets An asset retirement obligation is recognized

in the period in which it is Incurred and when reasonable estimate of the fair value of the

liability can be made wIth
corresponding asset retirement cost recognized by Increasing the

carrying amount of the related long-lived asset The asset retirement cost is subsequently

allocated in rational and systematic method over the underlying assets useful life The Initial

fair value of the liability is accreted by charges to operations to its estimated future value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash bank deposits and all highly liquid investments The

Company minimizes its credit risk by investing in cash equivalents with major international

banks and financial institutions Management believes that no concentration of credit risk exists

with respect to investment in its cash and cash equivaients As at December 31 2008 cash

equivalents consist of cash and term deposits

Automobile equipment and furniture

Automobile equipment and furniture are carried at cost less accumulated amortization

Amortization is calculated using the declining balance method at 30% per annum

In the year of acquisition amortization is recorded at one-half the normal rate

Stock-based compensation

The Company has adopted an incentive stock option plan
which is described in note

The Company accounts for stock options granted to directors officers employees and

nonemployees using the fair value method of accounting Accordingly the fair value of the

options at the date of the grant is determIned using the Black-Schoies option pricing model and

stock-based compensation is accrued and charged to operations with an offsetting credit to

contributed surplus on straight-line basis over the vesting periods The fair value of stock

options granted to non-employees is re-measured at the earlier of each financial reporting or

vesting date and any adjustment is charged or credited to operations upon re-measurement it

and when the stock options are exercised the applicable
amounts of contributed surplus are

transferred to share capital The Company has not incorporated an estimated forfeiture rate for

stock options that will not vest rather the Company accounts for actual forfeitures as they

occur

Date
Working Capital

Deficit Deflciencvi
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Notes to the Consolidated_Financial Statements

Great Quest Metals Ltd

December 31 2008 and 2007 December 31 2008 and 2007

Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the future income tax method Under this method income

taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current
year

and future

income taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases

of assets and liabilities and for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward for tax

purposes that are more likely than not to be realized Future income tax assets and liabilities

are measured using tax rates expected to
apply

in the
years in which the temporary differences

are expected to be recovered or settled To the extent that future income tax assets are not

considered more likely than not to be realized valuation allowance is recorded

Loss per share

Basic loss
per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the year Diluted loss
per

share is calculated
using

the

treasury stock method Under the
treasury

stock method the weighted average number of

shares outstanding used In the calculation of diluted loss per share assumes that the deemed

proceeds received from the exercise of stock options share purchase warrants and their

equivalents would be used to repurchase common shares of the Company at the average
market price during the

year

Existing stock options and share purchase warrants have not been included in the computation

of diluted loss
per

share as to do so would be anti-dilutive Accordingly basic and diluted loss

per share are the same

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions have been translated into Canadian funds using the temporal

method as follows

Monetary Items at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the balance sheet date

ii Non-monetary items at the historical rate of exchange

Deferred exploration and administration costs at the period average in which the transaction

occurred

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at

the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year

Actual results could differ from those estimates Significant areas requiring the use of

management estimates includes the determination of Impairment of mineral property interests

stock-based compensation and useful lives for depreciation and amortization Financial results

as determined by actual events could differ from those estimates

Share issue costs

Share issue costs incurred on the issue of the Companys shares are charged directly to share

uapital

SignIficant AccountIng Policies Continued

Financial instruments

As of January 2007 the Company applied on prospective basis the new recommendations

of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants regarding the recognition measurement and

presentation of financial instruments following the release of Sections 1530 -Comprehensive

income -3855 -Financial instruments recognition and measurement -3861 -Financial

instruments disclosure and
presentation

iJ
Financial assets and financial liabIlities held for trading

Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading are acquired or incurred principally for

the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near term They are recognized
at fair value

based on market prices with any resulting gains and losses reflected In net income for the

period in which they arise

Ii Held-to-maturIty financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments and fixed maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability
to hold to

maturity They are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method lees any

impairment loss gain or loss is recognized in net income when the financial asset is

derecognized or impaired and through the amortization process

iii Available-for-sal financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as

available for sale or that are not classified as loans and receivables held-to-maturity

investments or held for trading They are measured at fair value Fair value is determined

based on market prices Equity instruments that do not have quoted market price
in an active

market are measured at cost Gains and losses are recognized directly in other comprehensive

Income until the financial asset is derecognized at which time the cumulative gain or loss

previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income is recognized in net income

for the year

lv Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest rate method less any impairment lose

Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities classified as other than held for

trading are capitalized

The adoption of the above policies had no effect on opening deficit at January 2007

The Companys financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents
due from related

parties accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to related parties Unless otherwise

noted the fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying
values

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets held for trading and are accounted

for at fair value Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nak of change in value

Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than

for investment or other purposes

Amounts due from related parties are classified as loans and receivables

The Company classifies its accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to related parties

as other financial liabilities

10
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Great Quest Metals Ltd Great Quest Metals Ltd

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007 December 31 2008 and 2007

SIgnificant Accounting Policies Contviued

Accounting Changes

Effective January 2007 the Company implemented the new CICA Handbook Section 1506

accounting changes Under these new recommendations voluntary changes ri accounting

policy are permitted only when they result in the financial statements providing reliable and

more relevant information This section requires changes in accounting policy to be applied

retrospectively unless doing so is impracticable requires prIor period errors to be corrected

retrospectively and requires enhanced disclosures about the effects of change in accounting

policies estimates and error on the financial statements

These recommendations also require the disclosure of new primary sources of generally

accepted accounting principles that have been issued that the company has not adopted
because they are not yet in effect

The
Impact

this section will have on the Companys financial statements will depend on the

nature of future accounting changes

Valuation of
equity units issued In private placements

The Company has adopted residual value method with respect to the measurement of shares

and warrants issued as private placement units The residual value method first allocates value

to the more easily measurable component based on fair value and then the residual value if

any to the less easily measurable component

The fair value of the common shares issued in the pnvate placements was determined to be the

more easily measurable component and were valued at their fair value as determined by the

closing quoted bid price on the announcement date The balance if any was allocated to the

attached warrants Any fair value attributed to the warrants Is recorded as warrants

New Accounting Standards

Section 1400 General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation

In June 2007 the CICA amended Section 1400 to include requirements to assess an entitys

ability to continue as going concern and disclose any material uncertainties that cast doubt on

its ability to continue as going concern This new requirement was adopted by the Company
effective January 2008 The ability to continue as going concern is discussed in note

Capital Disclosures

In December 2006 the CICA issued Handbook section 1535 Capital disclosures The section

specifies the disclosure of an entitys otectives policies and processes for managing

capital ii quantitative data about what the entity regards as capital iii whether the entity has

complied with any capital requirements and iv if it has not complied the consequences of

such non-compliance This new section was adopted by the Company January 2008 The

Company discusses its capital management in note 14

SignIficant Accounting Policies Continued

New Accounting Standards Continued

Financial instruments

Section 3862 Financial Instruments Disclosures

Section 3863 FinancIal Instruments Presentation

These sections replace Section 3861 Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation

revising and enhancing disclosure requirements while carrying forward its presentation

requirements These new sections will place increased emphasis on disclosure about the

nature and extent of risk arising from financial Instruments and how the entity manages those

risks These new standards were adopted on January 2008 The Company has induded the

required disclosure in note 14

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

International financial reporting standards IFAS
In 2006 the AcSB published new strategIc plan that will significantly affect financial reporting

requirements for Canadian companies The AcSB strategic plan outlines the convergence of

Canadian GAAP arid IFRS over an expected five year transitional period In February 2008 the

AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publicly-listed companies to use IFRS

replacing Canadas own GAAP The date is for interim and annual financial statements relating

to fIscal years beginning on or after January 2011 The transition date of January 2011 will

require the restatement for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company for the

year ended December 31 2010 While the Company has begun assessing the adoption of

IFRS for 2011 the financial reporting Impact of the transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably

estimated at this time

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The AcSB issued CICA Handbook Section 3064 which replaces Section 3062 Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets and Section 3.450 Research and Development Costs This flew

section establishes standards for the recognition measurement presentation and disclosure of

goodwill subsequent to its Initial recognition and of Intangible assets Standards concerning

goodwill remain unchanged from the standards included in the previous Section 3062 The

section applies to interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or

after October 2008 and is not expected to have an impact on the Companys financial results

at adoption on January 2009

PrInciples of ConsolidatIon

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the following subsidiaries

Incorporation Percent of Ownership

Great Quest Barbados Barbados 100%

Great Quest Mali S.A Mali 99.7%

All significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated on consolidation

12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2008 and 2007
December 31 2008 and 2007

Term deposits

The following non transferable TD Canada Trust Term deposits have been classified as financial assets

held for trading and are accounted for at fair value

2008 2007

Cashsble Term deposit due August 20 2008 at cost plus

accrued interest at 8% per annum 122239

Casriable Term deposit due December 22 2008 at cost

plus accrued interest at 38% per annum 764875

Cashable Guaranteed Investment Certificate due October

2009 at cost plus accrued interest at 1.5% per annum 20716

20716

26064

907178

Due from related parties

Amounts due from Director and an employee do not bear interest are unsecured and have no fixed

payment terms accordingly fair value cannot be readily determined

Aniourits due from African Metals Corporation corporation previously related by common directors

does not bear interest is unsecured and has no llxed payment terms accordingly fair value cannot be

readily determined

2008

Automobile equipment and furniture

Cost

Accumulated

Amortization

Net Book

Value

Automobile $41769 39065 2704
Equipment 18924 15870 3054
Furniture 2347

63040

Cost

2241

57176

2007

Accumulated

Amortization

106

5864

Net Book

Value

Automobile $41769 37906 3863
Equipment 20722 16359 4363
Furniture 2347

64838

2195

56460

152

8378

MIneral Properties Including deferred costs

2008

Acqutsition

Costs

Deferred

Exploration and

Development Costs

Write-off of

Capitalized

Costs Total

Mali Properties

Taseko Property

$1193975

1025

1195000

Acquisition

Costs

3341244

1765742

5106986

2007

Deferred

Exploration and

Development Costa

3486

3486

Write-off of

Capitalized

Costs

$4531733

1766767

$6298500

Total

Mali
Properties

Taseko Property

1270160

1270161

3408023

1020352

$4428375

272978

272978

$4405205

1020353

5425558

Mail Properties

Bourdala Concessions

During the years 1998 to 2005 the Company entered Into Option Agreements and

amended Option Agreements to acquire 95% interest in nine mineral concessions

and 100% interest In four mineral concessions located in the Bourdala area of

Western Mall All of the agreements are subject to 1% net smelter returns royalty

NSR Total consideration paid to December 31 2008 amounted to $860794

During the
years

2001 to 2004 the Company abandoned three of the concessions and

accordingly total of $26593 was written-off to operations

During 2006 the Company paid total of 58500000 FCFA approximately $128982

in accordance with the terms of the amended agreements on the ten concessions

During 2007 the Company paid total of 27400000 FCFA approximately $65085 in

accordance with the amended agreements on the ten concessions Also during 2007

the Company abandoned two of the concessions and accordingly total capitalized

costs of $166590 were written-off to operations

During 2008 the Company paid total of 3000000 FCFA approximately $7980 in

accordance with the amended agreements on the eight concessions Also dunng 2008

the Company abandoned one of the concessions and accordingly total capitalized

costs of $3486 were written-off to operations

summary of the total remaining payments required under the option agreements or

the seven remaining Bourdala concessions are as follows

Amount CDN$

In arrears 53000000 FCFA 135516

2009 21000000 FCFA 53695

2010 10000000 FCFA 25569

2011 8000000 FCFA 20455

92000000 FCFA 235235
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Great Quest Metals Ltd

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 312008 and 2007

MIneral Properties including deferred Coats ContinueO

Mall Properties

ii Flilmana Area Concessions

Dunng 1998 and 1999 the Company entered into an Option Agreement to acquire

95% interest subject to 1% NSR In the Baoule Rrver and Winza concessions located

in the Filimana region of the Southwestern Mali Total consideration paid to December

31 2008 amounted to $104408

During 2004 management of the Company resoived to abandon the Wirtza concession

and accordingly total of $47892 was written-off to operations in 2004 Dunng 2006

management of the Company resolved to wilts-off the
remaining payments related to

the Winza concession and accordingly total of $11234 was written-off to operations in

2006

in addition during 2004 the value uf the Beoule River concessions was written-down to

nominal value Accordingly total capitalized costs of $36846 were written-off to

operations In 2004

During 2007 the Company entered into an Amended Option Agreement to
acquire

95% interest subject to 1% NSR in the Filimana Sud Est concession located in the

Fiiimana
region of the Southwestern Mall Abe dunng 2007 the Company made

payment of 500000 FCFA approximately $1177 on signing of the provisional

contract The Company also prepaid 1000000 FCFA approxImately $2366 on the

Option Agreement The amount is included in prepaid expenses The Company is still

waiting for receipt of the signed copy of the Convention dEtabiissement CE
summary of the total remaining payments required under the amended option

agreement on the Fihmana region is as follower

Amount CDN$

On receipt of the signed copy of the CE 2000000 FCFA 4350
On receipt of Arette de Miniere AM 2000000 FCFA 4350
Six months from

granting of AM 4000000 FCFA 8650
One year from granting of AM 4000000 FCFA 8650
Eighteen months from granting of AM 4250000 FCFA 9200
Two

years from granting of AM 5000000 FCFA 10800

Thirty months from granting otAM 5000000 FCFA 10800
Three

years from granting of AM 5000000 FCFA 10800

Forty-two months from granting of AM 5000000 FCFA 10800

Four
years

from
granting of AM 5000000 FCFA 10800

41250000 FCFA 89200

Great Quest Metals Ud

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007

Mineral Properties including deferred Costs Continued

Mali Properties

lii Baroya Concession

By an Option Agreement dated January 12 2001 the Company may acquire 95%
interest in the Baroya Concession in western Mali Total consideration paid to

December 31 2007 amounted to $139580 During 2007 the Company paid an

additional 3400000 FCFA approximately $8188

summary of the total remaining payment required under the option agreement on the

Baroya concession is as follows

Amount CDN$

2007 in arrears 6700000 FCFA 14500

iv Kenieba Concession

During 2001 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 95% interest in the

Kenieba concession In western Mali Total consideration paid to December 31 2005

amounted to $120090

As of December 31 2005 all of the terms of the agreement have been met and ttwre

are no payments remaining under the option agreement on the Kenieba concession

Sepola Concession

By an Option Agreement dated September 2004 the Company may acquire 95%
interest in the Sepola concession in western Mali Total consideration paid to

December 132005 amounted to $12171

During 2006 no payments were made

During 2007 the Company abandoned this concession and accordingly totai of

$27986 was written-off to operations

vi Manankoto Concession

By an Option Agreement dated November 30 2004 the Company may acquire
95%

interest in the Manankoto concession in western Mali Total consideration paid towards

the Option Agreement to December 31 2007 amounted to $25755

During 2007 the Company paid 5000000 FCFA approximately $11980 towards the

Option Agreement Subsequent to this payment the Company abandoned this

concession and accordingly total of $78402 was written-off to operations
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Great Quest Metals Ltd

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007
December 31 2008 and 2007

Mineral Properties lncluaing DeterreO Costs ContrnueO

Mali Properties

vii Comifa Concession

During the current year the Company acquired an square kilometer Comifa gold

concession in Mali West Africa whIch is north west and adjacent to the Companys
Kenieba gold concession The Comifa concession is held by Mailan company

African Metals Corporation AFR holds an option to acquire 95% interest in the

Comifa concession subject to 1% royalty on production Under the terms of the

agreement with AFR Great Quest is acquinng all of the rights and obligations under the

option agreement between the Malian company and AFR by issuing 100000 shares of

its
capital stock to AFR on spxoval by the TSX Venture Exchange further 50000

shares writ be issued in the event of the completion of stand-alone bankable

feasibility study on mineral resources located solely on the concession

Finally 50000 shares will be issued at the start of any production from the concession

in addition Great Quest wiii pay the remaining option payments as long as expioratron

on the concession continues to be favorable Of the original commitment totalling

$115000 $34000 has been paid by AFR total of 5000000 FCFA CDN$12785 to

be paid to the Malian company is required every six months

Canada Taseko Property

Pursuant to an Option Agreement dated Mardi 28 1989 with Moydow Mines International Inc

and AFR the Companys significant shareholders at that time the Company acquired 100%

interest in mineral claims located in the Clinton Mining Division of British Columbia for

consideration of $200000 cash and 1200000 shares of the Companys capital stock issued at

price of $0.01 per share

Subsequent to the date of acquisition the 1200000 shares were returned to the Company and

cancelled

The mineral ciaims are subject to 5% net emeter return royalty which may be purchased

from third
party for $1 million

During 2004 the value of the project was WTitten-dowfl to nominal value to comply with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles which in the absence of an exploration plan

or valuation report presumes that wilts-down of exploration and development costs is

necessary when there has been delay in development extending beyond three years

Accordingly total capitalized costs of $620011 were written down in 2004

During 2007 the Company applied and received permit to dnil on the Tsseko property
and

undertook driliing program on the property

During 2008 the Company paid US$1000 CDN$1024 to the Owner

Due to related
parties

Amounts due to the President of the Company and corporations controlled by common Directors do not

bear interest are unsecured and have no fixed payment terms accordingly the fair value cannot be

readily determined

Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Company is unlimited common shares without par
value

The Company has issued shares of its capital stock as follows

2008 2007

Number of Number of

Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance beginning of
year 27039914 $10164160 18834147 $7130161

Issued dunng the year
for

Cash 3000000 360000 8040459 3292038

Agents commission 165308 49452

Mineral property 100000 29000
Share issue costs

recovery

cash

agents units/warrants

shares

490

12767
7419

144226
86701
49452

legal fees 27112
Future income taxes on flow-through

shares 443066

Balance end of year 30139914 $10090398 27039914 $10164160

In February 2008 the Company renounced monies under the flow through share offerings that were

completed in the pnor year As result change occurred in the amount of unrecorded future income

taxes The Companys accounting policy requires that it record reduction in Share Capital for the tax

effect of expenditures renounced and if available record recovery in operations reflecting the

recognition of previously unrecorded future income tax assets

Transactions for the Issue of Share Capital

During the Year Ended December 312008

The Company issued 100000 shares at price of $0.29 per share based on the closing price
of

the shares on the date of Issue for the acquisition of the Comifa concession for total consideration

of $29000

The Company completed Private Placement consisting of 3000000 units at price of $0 12 per

unit for total consideration of $360000 Each unit consists of one share and one-half of

transferable share purchase warrant Each full share purchase warrant is exercisable to acquire

one additional share at price of $0.20
per

share on or before June 18 2009 The Company paid

finders fee of $12767 and agents fees of 106400 transferable agents warrants with stair value of

$7419 Each agents warrant is exercisable to acquire one share at
price

of $0.20 per share on

or before June 18 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007

Share Capital Continued

Transactions for the Issue of Share Capital

During the Year Ended December 31 2007

The Company entered into an agreement with Macquane Bank Umited Macquarie whereby
Macquane Is granted Right of First Offer ROFO to provide future project-construction debt

finance and hedging facilities as applicable to bring the Kenieba Project into commercial

production on terms acceptable to both Macquarie and Great Quest In return for granting the

ROFO Private Placement was completed with Macquarie consisting of 833332 units at price of

$0.60 per unit for total consideration of $500000 Each unit consisted of one share and one-half

of transferable share purchase warrant

Each fut share purchase warrant was exercisable to acquire one additional share at price of $0 75

per share on or before March 2008

The Company completed Private Placement consisting of 738667 units at price of $0 60 per

unit for total consideration of $443200 Each unit consisted of one share and one-half of

transferable share purchase warrant Each full share purchase warrant was exercisable to acquire

one additional share at price of $0.75 per share on or before April 2008 The Company paid

finders fee of $22362 and agents fees of 43307 transferable agents warrants with fair value of

$32480 Each agents warrant was exercisable to acquire one share at price of $0 75 per share

on or before April 2008

The Company completed flow-through financing of 450000 units at $0.75 per unit for total

proceeds of $337500 with the Cordilleran 2007 PartnershIp and five other investors Each unit

consisted of one flow-through share and one half of transferable share purchase warrant Each

full warrant entitled the holder to purchase one additional common share of the Companys capital

stock at price of $0.80 until July 20 2008 finders fee of $30000 cash legal fees of $9368 and

agents fee of 40000 transferable agents warrants with fair value of $6972 was paid Each

agents warrant was exercisable to acquire one share at price of $0.75 per share on or before July

20 2008 The warrants attached to these units were all subject to an early expiration provision

such that at any time after the date of closing should the common shares of the Company trade on

the TSX Venture Exchange at or above weighted average trading price of 1.00 per share for 10

consecutIve days the Company may have given notice to the holders of the warrants via news

release that the warrants will
expire 30 days from the date of providIng such notice

The Company completed non-brokered private placement with the MineralFields Group of

860000 flow-through units at $0.70 per unit for proceeds of $602000 and 230385 non flow-through

units at $0.65 per unit for proceeds of $149750 Each unit coneisted of one share and one half of

non flow-through share purchase warrant for total of 545192 warrants Each full warrant entitled

the holder to purchase one additional share in the Companys capital stock at $0.80
per share until

August 132008 finders fee comprised of $30070 cash legal fees of $17744 43615 common
shares with fair value of $22680 and compensation options to purchase 87230 compensation

units with fair value of $16924 was paid Each compensation unit is exercisable for period of

one year at price of $0.65
per unit and consists of one share and one half of one year

compensation option warrant Each full compensation option warrant entitled the holder to purchase

one share of the Companys capital stock at $0 80 per share until August 13 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007

Share Capital Continued

Transactions for the Issue of Share CapItal

During the Year Ended December 312007

The Company completed private placements ri two tranches with the first tranche being completed

by the MineralFields Group This tranche consisted of 1851849 flow-through units priced at $027

per unit for proceeds of $500000 Each unit consisted of one flow-through common share and one-

half of one year transferable share purchase warrant for total of 925925 warrants Each full

warrant entitled the holder to purchase one common share of the Companys capital stock at price

of $0.40 until December 19 2008 MineralFields also purchased 1190476 non-flow-through units

pnced at $0 21 per unit for proceeds of $250000 Each non-flow-through unit consisted of one

common share and one two-year transferable share purchase warrant for total of 1190476
warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share of the Companys capital stock at

price of $0.30 per share until December 19 2008 and at price of $040 per share from December

20 2008 to December 19 2009 finders fee comprised of $30000 cash 121693 common

shares with fair value of $26772 and compensation options to purchase 243386 compensation

units with fair value of $18576 was paid Each compensation option is exercisable for period of

years
at price of $0.21 per unit and consists of one common share and one compensation unit

warrant Each warrant is exercisable at price of $0.30 until December 19 2008 and at $040 per

share from December 20 2008 to December 19 2009 for total of 243386 warrants

The second tranche of the private placements consisted of 980000 flow-through units priced at

$0.27 per unit for proceeds of $264600 and 737500 non-flow-through units priced at $0 21 per unit

for proceeds of $154875 with the same terms as the first tranche except that the warrant expiry

dates are December 18 2008 instead of December 19 2008 Finders fees of $20412 cash and

75600 broker warrants with fair value of $6347 were paid on the second tranche of the flow-

through financing with the warrants exercisable at price of $0.27 until December 18 2008 and

finders fees of $11382 cash and 54200 broker warrants with fair value of $5402 were paid on

the second tranche of the non-flow-through financing with the warrants exercisable at price of

$0.21 until December 18 2008

The Company issued 55000 shares at price of $0 30 per share for the exercise of options
for

total consideration of $16500

The Company issued 113250 shares at price of $065 per
share for the exercise of warrants for

total consideration of $73613

Stock Options

The Company has adopted an incentive stock option plan the PlanS The essential elements of the

Plan provide that the aggregate number of common shares of the Companys capital stock issuable

pursuant
to options granted under the Plan may not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and

outstanding shares on non-diluted basis Options granted under the Plan may have maximum term

of five years

20 21



Great Quest Metals Ltd Great Quest Metals Ltd

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements M.. ..

December 31 2008 and 2007 December 31 2008 and 2007

Share Capital Continued

Stock Options Continued

The exercise price of options granted under the Plan will not be less than the market price of the

common shares defined as the last dosing market price of the Companys common shares immediately

preceding the issuance of news release announcing the granting of the options or such other price

as may be agreed to by the Company and accepted by the TSX Venture Exchange All options granted

under the Plan will become vested in full upon grant except options granted to consultants performing

investor relations activities wtiict options will become vested to exercise one-fourth of the option upon

every three months subsequent to the date of the grant of the option

summary of the status of the Companys stock option plan as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and

changes during the years then ended is as follows

2008

Shares

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Weighted Average

Remaining Life Years
OptJons outstanding beginning of year

Exercised

1525000 $068 3.72

Forfeitedlcanoelled

Granted

1525000
2675000

068
14

Options outstandIng end of year

Options outstanding beginning of
year

Exercised

Granted

Forfeited/cancelled

2675000

Shares

940000

55000
865000

225000

0.14

2007

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

70

030
0.65

0.74

480

Weighted Average

Remaining Life Years

59

Options outstanding end of year 1525000 0.68 3.72

Options Outstanding Options Exerosable Pnce Expiry Date

700000 680000 $0.25 April 2013

1975000 1896250 $0.10 December 30 2013

2675000 2576250

December 30 2008 April 2008

Expected volatility 122.21% 9288%
Risk-free interest rate 69% 3.03%

Expected life years years

Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

Expected volatility 84.94% 89 32%

Risk-free interest rate 4.69% 4.53%

Expected life years years

Expected dividend yield 0% 0%

Weighted Average Weighted Average

F.rcise Price Remainina Life YearslShares --

Agent options outstanding beginning

of year

Expired

330616

87230
$0.33

0.65

61

Agent options outstanding end of year 243386

Shares

21

2007

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

0.97

Weighted Average

Remaining Life Years

Agent options outstanding beginning

ofyear

Granted 330616 033 161

Options outstanding end of year 330616 33 61

Share Capital Continued

Stock Options Continued

June11 2007 May 30.2007

At December 31 2008 the Company had the following outstanding and exercisable stock options

Based on the above assumptions the average fair value of each option granted was $0 06 2007

$041 accordingly compensation expense of $138294 2007 $456.988 was recorded in the

statement of operations

Option pricing models require the input of highly suective assumptions including the expected price

volatility Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate snd

therefore the existing models do not necessarily provide reliable single measure of the fair value of the

Companys stock options

Warrants

At December 31 2008 the Company had outstanding purchase warrants exercisable to acqlre

4950301 shares as follows

Number Exercise Price Expiry
Date

1415925 $008 March 19 2009

1606400 $020 June 18 2009

737500 040 December 18 2009

1190.476 0.40 December 19 2009

4950301

subnqu.ntly .xpied un.x.tcMsd

Compensation

Agent Compensation Options

2008

The fair values of options granted during the current and prior year were estimated at the grant date

using the Black-Scholes option pncing model with the following weighted average assumptions
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December 31 2008 and 2007

Share Capital Continued

Agents Compensation Options Continued

At December 31 2008 the Company had the following compensation options outstanding

Compensation options to purchase 243386 compensation units for period of
years at price of

$0.21 per unit and consists of one common share and one warrant Each Warrant Is exercisable at

price of $0.30
per share until December 19 2008 and at $0.40

per share from December 20 2008 to

December 19 2009 for total of 243386 warrants

Agents Compensation Warrants

2008

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Exercise Price Remaining Life Years

0.78 0.60

0.78
020

106400 $0.20 0.46

2007

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Years

Agents warrants outstanding

beginning of year

Granted 127230 0.78 0.60

Agents warrants outstanding end of

year 127230 $0.78 0.60

Great Quest Metals Ltd

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2008 and 2007

Share Capital Continued

Agents Compensation Warrants Continued

During the prior year 43615 agents compensation warrants granted as finders fee on private

placement vested in the amount of $9987 total fair value and are included in contributed surplus

The offsetting amount has been recorded as reduction of share capital and included in issue

costs

The above amount was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions

Expected volatility 8851%

Risk-free Interest rate 4.37%

Expected life year

Expected dividend yield 0%

These options expired unexercised on August 14 2008

Balance beginning of
year 1011531 467842

Stock-based compensation expense 138294 456988
Agent warrants Issued 7419 86701

Balance end of year 1157244 1011531

Escrow Shares

Nil

10 Related Party Transactions

The Company had the following related party transactions

Management lees totaling $39600 2007 $32300 have been incurred with corporation

related to the Company by the CEO of the Company

Management fees totaling $33000 2007 $23250 have been incurred with corporation

related to the Company by the CFO of the Company

Office and
general expenses totaling $37108 2007 $24716 and capitalized exploration

fees

totaling $2400 2007 $Nll have been incurred with director of the Company

Accounting fees totaling $11629 2007 $6606 and consulting fees totaling $20186 2007

$14569 have been incurred with the Secretary of the Company

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been valued in these financial

statements at the exchange amount Which the amount of consideration established and agreed to by

the related parties

Agents Warrants
outstanding

beginning of year

Expired

Granted

Agents warrants
outstanding end of

year

Shares

127230

127230
106400 Contributed Surplus

During the current year 106400 agents compensation warrants granted as finders fee on

private placement vested In the amount of $7419 total fair value and are Included in contributed

surplus The offsetting amount has been recorded as reduction of share capital arid included in

issue costs Each warrant is exercisable at price of $0.20 per share on or before June 18 2009

The above amount was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the
following assumptions

Expected volatility 130.46%

RIsk-free interest rate 2.91%

Expected life
year

Expected dividend yield 0%

During the prior year 40000 agents compensation warrants granted as finders fee on private

placement vested In the amount of $6972 total fair value and are included in contributed surplus

The offsetting amount has been recorded as reduction of share capital and included in issue

costs

The above amount was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions

Expected volatility 65 65%
Risk-free interest rate 71%
Expected life

year

Expected dividend yield 0%

These options expired unexercised on July 20 2008
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12 Segmented Information

The Companys activities are all in the one industry segment of mineral property acquisition exploration and

development

Property automobile equipment and furniture by geographical segment are as follows

Mali Canada Total

December 31 2008

Automobite equipment and furniture 4963 901 5864
Mineral properties including deferred costs 4531733 1766767 6298500

4536696 1767668 6304364

Mali Canada Total

December 31 2007

Automobile equipment and furniture 7090 1288 8378

Mineral properties Including deferred costs 4405205 1020353 5425556

4412295 1021641 5433936

Revenue and expenses by geographical segment are as follows

Mali Canada Total

For the year ended December 31 2008

interest income 16569 16569

Expenses 158046 501981 660027
Loss on foreign exchange 56846 56846
Future income taxes 443066 443066

214892 42346 257238

Mali Canada Total

For the year ended December 31 2007

Interest income 15783 15783

Expenses 322643 831589 1154.232

322643 815806 1138449

13 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

2008 2007

Non-cash Itnancing activity

Issue of share capital for mineral properties 29000

29000

Non-cash investing
activities

Deferred exploration costsamortization 2128 3038

Acquertion of mineral properties 29000

31.128 3038J

11 Income Taxes

Income tax expense varies from the amount that would be computed from applying the combined

federal and provincial income tax rate to loss before taxes as follows

2008 2007

Net loss forthe year 700304 1138449
Statutory Canadian corporate tax rate 31.0% 34.1%

Anticipated tax
recovery 217094 388211

Change in tax rates resulting from

Effect of tax rate change 126510 3886
Non-capital loss

carry forwards expired 36255 21839

Non-deductible items for tax purposes 40276 155833

Charge in valuation allowance 429013 214425

Income tax recovery 443066

The signiftcant components of the Companys future tax asset are as follows

2008 2007

Exploration deductions 196112 275055

Automobile equipment and furniture 13306 14112

Non-capital loss carry forwards 711124 646222

Share issue coats 51622 73564

579940 1006953
Valuation allowance 579940 1008953

The Company has available non-capital losses for Canadian income tax purposes which may be carried

forward to reduce taxable income in future years If not utilized the non-capital losses in the amount of

$2735091 expire as follows

2009

2010

2014

2015

2026

2027

2028

160799

210315

217462

240 140

312716

969969

623690

2735091

Al December 31 2008 the Company has unclaimed resource and other deductions in the amount of

$5544223 2007 $6374023 which may be deducted against future taxable income on

discretionary basis

In addition the Company has share issue costs totalling $198548 2007 $253669 which have not

been claimed for income tax purposes
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14 CapItal Disclosures

December 31 2008 and 2007

The Company includes cash and
equity comprising

of issued common shares contributed surplus and

deficit in the definition of capital

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it based on the funds available

to the Company In order to support the acquisition exploration and development of mineral properties
The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management but

rather relies on the expertise of the Companys management to sustain future development of the

business

The
properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration stage as such the

Company is dependent upon external financings to fund activities In order to carry out planned
exploration and pay for administrative costs the Company will spend its existing working capital and

raise additional funds as needed The Company will continue to assess new properties and seek to

acquire an interest in additional properties if
it fee there is sufficient geologic or economic potential and

if it has adequate financial resources to do so

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this

approach given the relative size of the Company Is reasonable

There were no changes in the Companys approach to capital management during the
year

ended

December 31 2008 The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

Financial Risk Management

The Company exposed in varying degrees to variety of financial instrument related risks

Credit Risk

15 Subsequent Events

The Company announced Private Placement consisting of 3000000 units at
price of $0.04 per

unit for total consideration of $120000 The Private Placement subsequently closed with total

of 2750000 units at price of $004 per unit for total consideration of $110000 Each unit

consists of one share and one-half of transferable share purchase warrant Each full share

purchase warrant is exercisable to acquire one additional share at price of $0.07 per share on or

before February 27 2010

By an agreement dated April 2009 the Company granted Avion Resources Corp an option to

acquire 75% interest in the Companys Kenieba Kenieba Eat Baroya and Comifa properties in

Mali for consideration ot

Cumulative cash payments totaling $2.5 million within five years of signing definitive

agreement and

Incurring cumulative exploration expenditures totaling $2 million over five year period

commencing from the signing of definitive agreement

This agreement is subject to regulatory approval

The Company Is exposed to credit risk by holding cash and equivalents This risk is minimized by

holding the investments In large Canadian financial institutions The Company has mInimal accounts

receivable exposure and its various refundable credits are due from Canadian govemments

Currency Risk

The Companys functional currency is the Canadian dollar There is foreign exchange risk to the

Company as some of its mineral property interests are located in Mali Management monitors its foreign

currency balances and makes adjustments based on anticipated need for currencies The Company

does not engage in any hedging activities to reduce its foreign currency risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk relates to its ability to earn interest income on cash

balances at variable rates The fair value of the Companys cash accounts is
relatively unaffected by

changes in short term interest rates The income earned on certain bank accounts is subject to the

movements in interest rates

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its financial obligations as they come due

The Company currently has working capital deficit The Companys current resources are insufficient

to settle its current liabilities The Company plans
to manage this risk through equity financings and

selling or oioning its mineral properties
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GREAT QUEST
METALS LTD
Suite 515 475 Howe Street

Vancouver British Columbia CANADA V6C 2B3

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting of the shareholders of Great

Quest Metals Ltd the Company will be held at 10th Floor 595 Howe Street Vancouver

British Columbia on Tuesday June 16 2009 at the hour of 130 p.m Vancouver time for the

following purposes

To receive and consider the report of the directors and the financial statements of the

Company together with the auditors report thereon for the financial year ended December

31 2008

To fix the number of directors at five

To elect directors for the ensuing year

To appoint MacKay LLP the auditors for the ensuing year

To approve the cancellation of outstanding incentive options and the granting of new

incentive options to insiders of the Company

To approve the adoption of new Stock Option Plan

To transact such further or other business as may properly come before the meeting and

any adjoununents thereof

The accompanying information circular provides additional information relating to the matters to

be dealt with at the meeting and is deemed to form part of this notice

If you are unable to attend the meeting in person please complete sign and date the enclosed

form of proxy and return the same in the enclosed return envelope provided for that purpose

within the time and to the location set out in the form of proxy accompanying this notice

DATED this 24th day of April 2009

BY ORDER OF TILE BOARD

Willis Osborne

Willis Osborne

President



NON-REGISTERED HOLDERS

GREAT QUEST
METALS LTD
Suite 515 475 Howe Street

Vancouver British Columbia CANADA V6C 2B3

Thlephonc 604-689-2882 Facsnnik 604-684-5854

INFORMATION CIRCULAR

As at April 24 2009 except as indicated

GREAT QUEST METALS LTD the Company is providing this Information Circular and form of prox
in connection with managements solicitation of proxies for use at the annual general meeting the Meeting of

the Company to be held on Tuesday June 16 2009 and at any adjournments thereof Unless the context other.ise

requires when we refer in this Information Circular to the Company its subsidiaries are also included The

Company will conduct its solicitation by mail and officers and employees of the Company may without receiving

special compensation also telephone or make other personal contact The Company will pay the cost of

solicitation

APPOINTMENT OF PROXYHOLDER

The purpose of proxy is to designate persons who will vote the proxy on shareholders behalf in accordance

with the instructions given by the shareholder in the proxy The persons whose names are printed in the enclosed

form of proxy are officers or Directors of the Company the Management Proxybolders

shareholder has the right to appoint person other than Management Proxyholder to represent the

shareholder at the Meeting by striking out the names of the Management Proxyholders and by inserting the

desired persons name in the blank space provided or by executing proxy in form similar to the enclosed

form proxyholder need not be shareholder

VOTING BY PROXY

Only registered shareholders or duly appointed proxyholders are permitted to vote at the Meeting Shares

represented by properly executed proxy will be voted or be withheld from voting on each matter referred to in the

Notice of Meeting in accordance with the instructions of the shareholder on any ballot that nay be called for and if

th shareholder specifies choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon the shares will be voted accordingly

if shareholder does not specify choice and the shareholder has appointed one of the Management

Proxyholders as proxyholder the Management Proxyholder will vote in favour of the matters specified in the

Notice of Meeting and in favour of all other matters proposed by management at the Meeting

The enclosed form of proxy also gives discretionary authority to the person named therein as proxyholder

with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of the Meeting and with respect

to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting At the date of this information Circular

management of the Company knows of no such amendments variations or other matters to come before the

Meeting

COMPLETION AND RETURN OF PROXY

Completed forms of proxy must be
deposited at the corporate office of the Company 515 475 Howe Street

Vancouver British Columbia V6C 2B3 Fax 604-684-5854 not later than forty-eight 48 hours excluding

Saturdays Sundays and holidays prior to the time of the Meeting unless the chairman of the Meeting elects to

exercise his discretion to accept proxies received subsequently

Only shareholders whose names appear on the records of the Company as the registered holders of shares or

duly appointed proxyholders are permitted to vote at the Meeting Most shareholders of the Company are

non-registered shareholders because the shares they own are not registered in their names but instead registered
in

the name of nominee such as brokerage firm through which they purchased the shares bank trust company

trustee or administrator of selfadministered RRSPs RRIFs RESPs and similar plans or clearing agency such

as The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited Nominee If you purchased your shares through broker

you are likely an unregistered holder

In accordance with securities regulatory policy the Company has distributed copies of the Meeting materials being

the Notice of Meeting this Information Circular and the proxy to the Nominees for distribution to non-registered

holders

Nominees are required to forward the Meeting materials to non-registered
holders to seek their voting instructions in

advance of the Meeting Shares held by Nominees can only be voted in accordance with the instructions of the non-

registered holder The Nominees often have their own form of proxy mailing procedures and provide their o..n

return instructions If you wish to vote by proxy you should carefully follow the instructions from the Nominee in

order that your Shares are voted at the Meeting

If you as nonregistered holder wish to vote at the Meeting in person you should appoint yourself as

proxyholder by writing your name in the space provided on the request for voting instructions or proxy provided by

the Nominee and return the form to the Nominee in the envelope provided Do not complete the voting section of

the form as your vote will be taken at the Meeting

In addition Canadian securities legislation now permits the Company to forward meeting materials directly to non

objecting beneficial owners If the Company or its agent has sent these materials directly to you instead of

through Nominee your name and address and information about your holdings of securities have been otained

in accordance with
applicable securities regulatory requirements from the Nominee holding on your bcha1 By

choosing to send these materials to you directly the Company and not the Nominee holding on your behalf has

assumed responsibility for delivering these materials to you and ii executing your proper voting instructions

REVOCABILITY OF PROXY

Any registered shareholder who has returned proxy may revoke it at any time before it has been exercised In

addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law registered shareholder his attorney authorized in

writing or if the registered shareholder is corporation corporation under its corporate seal or by an officer or

attorne% thereof duly authorized may revoke proxy by instrument in writing including proxy bearing later

date The instrument revoking the proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at any time up

to and including the last business day preceding the date of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the

chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting Only registered shareholders have the right to revoke

proxy Non-Registered Holders who wish to change their vote must at least seven days before the Meeting

arrange for their Nominees to revoke the proxy on their behalf

VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares without par value of ..bich

32889.914 shares were issued and outstanding as at April 24 2009 Persons who are registered shareholders at

the close of business on April 24 2009 will be entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Meeting and ..ill be

entitled to one vote for each share held The Company has only one class of shares

To the knowledge of the Directors and executive officers of the Company no person beneficially eons controls or

directs directly or indirectly shares carrying 10% or more of the voting rights attached to all shares of the

Company



ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Compaxsv are elected at each annual
general meeting and hold office until the next annual

v.eiieral meeting or until their successors are appointed In the absence of instructions to the contran the enclosed

prox\ iIl be voted for the nominees herein listed

Sharehokhr approval will be sought to fix the number of Directors of the Compan at fre

The Company is required to have an audit committee Members of this committee are as set Out below

Management of the Company proposes to nominate each of the following persons for election as Director

Information concerning such persons as furnished by the individual nominees is as follows

rincipaioccupatiT1

Employment and if not

Previously Elected Director

Jurisdiction of Occupation During the

and Position Past leurs

Previous

Service

as Director

NurnheroffwT1
Shares Beneficially

hissed Controlled or

Dwected Directly or

Jones Chairman of time Company
President Etlesinere

Enterprises

Canada Ltd and CAST Ventures

Director Corporation

Since March21

1989

545.627

Keita
Geologist and consultant to time

Africa Company

Exploration

Since May 21

1998

224.500

2473.297
President of the Coi

British Columbia President Swiftcurrnt Ventures

Ltd and WWO Ventures Ltd
and Director private company wholly owned

by Swifleurrent Ventures Ltd

Since March 21

1989

President LN Investments Ltd

Alberta Canada

Since October 19

2004

lt250

Member of the audit committee

Shares beneficially owned directly or indirectly or over which control or direction is exercised at at April 24 2009

based upon information furnished to the Company by individual Directors Unless otherwise indicated such stsares are

held directly

Of these shares 472712 are held indireeilv in ttic name of Ellesinere Enterprises Ltd. private coinpan\ uliotly

owiscd by Mi Jones

Of these shares 2.18 1.035 are held indirectly iii the names of Swiftcurrent Ventures Ltd. private coisspany wholly

owned by Mr Osborne and WWO Ventures Ltd. private company wholly owned by Swiftcssrrent Ventures Ltd

Of these shares 92.501 arc held indirectly in the name LN Investments private company wholly owned by Mr
\eichi

No proposed Director is to be elected under any arrangement or understanding between the proposed Director amid

any other person or company except the Directors and executive officers of the company acting solel in such

capacit

To the know ledge of the Company no proposed Director

is as at the date of the Information Circular or has been within 10 years before the date of the Information

Circular Director chief executive officer CEO or chief financial officer CFO of any compan

including the Company that

was the subject while the proposed Dtrector was acting in the capacity as Director CEO or CFO

of such company of cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company

access to any exemption under securities legislation that was in effect for period of more than 30

consecutive days or

ii was subject to cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company acccs to

any exemption under securities legislation that was in effect for period of more than 30

consecutive days that was issued after the proposed Director ceased to be Director CEO or

CFO but which resulted from an event that occurred while the proposed Director was acting
in the

capacity as Director CEO or CFO of such company or

is as at the date of this Infonnation Circular or has been within 10 years before the date of the Informssatiois

Circular Director or executive officer of any compan including the Company that while that person

was acting in that capacity or within year of that person ceasing to act in that capaci became

bankrupt made proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or

instituted any proceedings arrangement or compromise with creditors or had receiver receiver manager

or trustee appointed to hold its assets or

has within the 10 years before the date of this Information Circular become bankrupt made proposal

under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or become subject to or instituted any

proceedings arrangement or compromise with creditors or had receiver receiver manager or trustee

appointed to hold the assets of the proposed Director or

has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by court relating to securities legislation or by

securities regulatory authority or has entered into settlcment agreement with securities regulatory

authority or

has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by court or regulatory body that would likely be

considered important to reasonable securitvholder in deciding whether to vote for proposed Director

The following Directors of the Company hold Directorships
in other reporting

issuers as set out below

Name of Director of Other Rsponing lsucr

Willis Osborne N/A

Victor .lE Jones

Mahamnadou Keita

N/A

N/A

Robert Veitch N/A

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Companys compensation philosophy for its NEOs is designed to attract well qualified individuals in vvhat is

essentially an international market by paying competitive base management fees plus short and long term incentive

compensation in the form of stock options or other suitable long term incentives In making its determinations

regarding the various elements of executive compensation the board of directors has access to and relies on

published studies of compensation paid in comparable businesses

The duties and responsibilities of the President and Chief Executive Officer are typical
of those of business entity

of the Companys size in similar business and include direct reporting responsibility
to the Chairman of the

Board overseeing the activities of all other executive and management consultants representing
the Company

providing leadership and responsibility for achieving corporate goals and implementing corporate policies and

irmitiativ Cs



Option-Based Asv aids

rite Companys Stock Option Plan has been and will be used to provide share purchase options sshich are granted

in consideration of the level of responsibility of the executive as well as his or her impact or contribution to the

longer-term operating performance of the Company In determining the number of options to be granted to the

eceutive officers the Board takes into account the number of options if an previousl granted to each executi

officer and the exercise pace of any outstanding options to ensure that such grants are in accordance with the

policies of the TSX Venture Exchange and closely align the interests of the executive officers with the interests of

shareholders

Fic Board of Directors as whole has the responsibility to administer the compensation policies ielated to the

executive management of the Company including option-based awards

Summars Compensation Tables

The following table presented in accordance with National Instrument Form l-l02F6 Statement of Executive

Compensation which came into force on December 31 2008 the Form 51-102F6 sets forth all annual and

lonC term compensation for services in all capacities to the Compass for the most
recently completed financial year

to the extent required by Form 51- 102F6 in
respect

of each of the individunis comprised of the CEO and the CFO
as at December 31 2008 and each of the three most highly compensated executive officers or the three most highly

compensated individuals
acting in similar capacity other than the CEO and the CFO as at December 31 2008

vyhose total compensation was individually more than $150000 for the financial year and any individual vyho

vvould have satisfied these criteria but for the flict that the individual yvas neither an executive officer of the

Company nor acting
in similar capacity at the end of the most recently completed financial %ear collectively the

Named Executive Officers or NEOs

VP eon
00

PoojIk .r
.5L

.5k.. Opdoo

4..da .imuL

.5 fS.l

votm1
JbnCo.pe.mdo

10000I Lomg-tnojjj jj
J5.

WAbor
Pe.aio. ISthe .penotoo

ToO
no.poonulon

tWli sW
tishonie

VEO

20ti8 Nil $19796 Nit Nil .sx

Victor

Jones

2005FUjNit Nil $25426 Nil Nil Nil $33OOo $55426

Bised ott the fair value estimated at the date of grant usuig the Btack-Scholes pacing model under the following assuir.ptiOns

ask tree vveigbted average
interest rate ranging

from 85% to 313% expected dividend yield of nil ui average

expected volatility ranging from 92.88% to l22.2W and iv an expected term of live years The l5lsck-Scholes pacing
model

stan used to estimate the fair value as it is the most accepted methodology

Management lees stere paid to Sstiflcurrent Ventures Ltd for services widertaketi on behalf of the Company Sssiltcumreia

Veniures Ltd is private company wholly onned hr Mr Osborne See Consulting Agreements

Mummagemeni lees were paid to Ellesmere Enterpases t.td br services undertaken on behalf of the Coinpan Eltestnere

Enterprises Ltd is private company wholly oured by Mr Jones Sec Consulting Agreements

Incentive Plan Awards

The Company does not have an incentive plans pursuant to yvhich compensation that depends on achieving certain

pcrfonnanice goals or similar conditions yvithin specified period it awarded earned paid or pay able to the Named

Executive Officers

Pension Plan Benefits

The Compan does not have pension plan that provides for payments or benefits to the Named Executive Officers

at following or in connection with retirement

Tegnatipn and Changcof Control Benefits

The Compass and its subsidmanes have no cmploment contracts with an Named Exccutmv Officer ihe

Company has consulting agreement yvith Svviftcurrent Ventures Ltd pursuant to which fees are S00 per
month

for services as CEO and
consulting agreement yvith Ellesmere

Enterprises
Ltd pursuant to which fees arc 5501

per day for services as CFO of the Company During the last completed financial ear the Compan vvas chai ged

management fees in the amount of $39600 by Svviftcurrent Ventures Ltd. private company wholly owned bs

Willis Osbome President CEO and Director of the Company and management fees in the amount of3300O

Ellesmere Enterprises Ltd private companY vvholly owned by Victor i.E Jones Chairman CFO and

Director of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries have no compensatoiy plan contract or arrangement yvisere Named Executive

Officer is entitled to receive more than $100000 to compensate such executive officers in the event of resignation

retirement or other termination change of control of the Company or its subsidiarses or change in

responsibilities following change in control

The consulting agreements provide that tn the event of change of control of the Company that each of

Swmftcurrent Ventures Ltd and Ellesmere Enterprises Ltd are entitled to severance payment in the anirunt of

$60000 There are no significant conditions or obligations
with which Swiftcurrent Ventures Ltd or Ellesmere

Enterprises Ltd have to comply with in order to receive the severance pay Except as set out above there are no

other obligations to compensate Swiftcurrent Ventures Ltd or Ellesmere Enterprises
Lcd on resignation retirement

or any other termination

Director Comoensajjp

The
follovving

table sets forth all amounts of compensation provided to the Directors ysho are each not also

Named Executive Officer for the Companys most recently completed financial year

ThietSOr

L.LL_--
Mahamadou Keita

Sal asy

Nil

Share-

Based

Awadit

Nil

ONioi-Based

Award

$198662

.\on-Equlty

1wetive Plan

Compensation

Nil

Pension

aloe

Nil

.111 OiJn

Compensation

$39508

Totalj4
$59174

Robert Veitch Nil Nil 12.2672

672
Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

Sl2.267
$12267

kelevammt disclosure hits been provided in the Surnmatt onvptisation TaIeforfiuanctai waifs ending om or after Jkcmhr

31 2008 above for Directors vvho receive compensation for their services as Director who .rc also NanteJ Executive

Officers

Based on the fair value estimated at the date of
grant usmg the Black-Scnolcs pricing

model under the foliovy tog assumptIslis

risk free weighted average interest rate ranging from 85% to 13% ii expected dividend yield of itil mm aver.gc

expected solatilit ranging fiom 92 88% to 122 2l% amid is an expected lean of Inc eurs The 13lick-Scltotr pricisn
mdcl

vvas used to estimate the fair value as it is the most accepted methodulos

Office and general fees totalling $37108 and lees relating to ness project
cost tntallng $2400 steme paid to Mr Kettu

Thc Company has no arrangements standard or othervv ise pursuant to which Directors are compensated by the

Company or its subsidiaries for their services in their capacity as Directors or for committee participation

involvemen in special assignments or for services as consultant or expert dunng the most recently completed

financial year or subsequenth up to and including
the date of this Information Circular



The Conipan has Stock Option Plan for the granting of inecritiv stock
options

to the officers employees and

Directors The purpose of
granting such options is to assist the Company in compen.sating attracting retaining and

moti ating the Directors of the Company and to closely align the
personal interests of such

persons to that of the

shareholders

lncentie Plan Av.ards Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

The Company does not have any incentive plans pursuant to which compensation that depends on achic trig certain

perfonnance goals or similar conditions within specified period is awarded earned paid or payable to the

Directors

gc9rities Authorized for lssuanc Under Equity Compensation Piggg

The following table sets forth the Companys compensation plans under which equit\ securities are authorized for

issuance as at the end of the most recently completed financial year

Category

Number of securities to

be issued upon erercise

of oulseanding apr ions

warrants and rights

Weighted-average

exercise price of

ouceanding options

warrants and rights

----__
Number of securities

remaining available for

future issuance under equity

compensation plans

exduding securities

reflected in column

compensation plans

securityho/ders

2.675.000 $0.14 338.991

plans not

securityholders

Nil

2675000

N/A N/A

Total
$0.14 338.991

INDEBTEDNESS TO COMPANY OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As at April 21 2009 there was no indebtedness outstanding of any current or former Director executive officer or

employee of the Company or any of Its subsidiaries which is owing to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or to

another entity which is the
subject of guarantee support agreement letter of credit or other similar arrangement

or understanding provided by the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into in connection with purchase of

securities or otherwise

No individual who is or at any time during the most recently completed financial year was Director or executive

officer of the Company no proposed nominee for election as Director of the Company and no associate of such

persons

is or at any tune since the beginning of the most recently completed financial ear has been indebted to the

Company or any of its subsidiaries or

ii shose indebtedness to another entity is or at any time since the begisming of the most recently completed

finaiscial year has been the subject of guarantee support agreement letter of credit or other similar

arrangement or understanding provided by the Company or any of its subsidiaries in relation to securities

purchase program or other program

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Except as set out herein no person \no has btn Director or executi.c officer of the Company at an\ time cince

the beginning of the Companys last financial .ear no proposed normnee of management of the Compan for

election as Director of the Company and no associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons has an material

interest direct or indirect sav of beneficial onnership or otherwise in mailers to be acted upon at the Meeting

other than the election of Directors or the appointment of auditors

INTEREST OF iNFORMED PERSONS IN MATERiAL TRANSACTIONS

iisfonred person or prop..sed Director of the Company and no associate or affiliate of the foregoins persons has

or has had any material interest direct or indirect in any transaction since the comnsenccinent of the Companys

most recently completed financial year or in any proposed transaction hich in either such case has material

affected or would materially affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

MacKay LLP Chartered Accountants of Vancouver British Columbia is the auditor of the Conspan Unless

otherwise instructed the proxies given pursuant to this solicitation will be voted for the re-appointment of MacKa
LLP as the auditor of the Compan to hold office for the ensuing year at remuneration to be fixed thc

Directors

CONSULTING AGREEMENTS

No management functions of the Company or subsidiary are performed to an substantial degree person other

than the Directors or executis officers of the Company or subsidiar During the last completed financial year the

Company was charged management flees in the amount of $39600 Swiftcurrcnt Ventures Ltd. pris ate

company wholly owned by Willis Osborne President CEO and Director of the Company and management

fees in the amount of $33000 by Ellesmere Enterprises Ltd private company wholly owned Victor

Jones Chairman CFO and Director of the Company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE

National Policy
58-201 establishes corporate governance guidelines

which apply to all public companies The

Company has reviewed its own corporate governance practices in light of these guidelines
In certain cases the

Compan practices comply with the guidelines however the Board considers that some of the guidelines are not

suitable for the Company at its current
stage

of development and therefore these guidelines
have not been adopted

National Instrument 58-It mandates disclosure of corporate governance practices
which disclosure is set out

bloti

Independence of Members of Board

The Companys Board consists of fise Directors three of whom arc independent based upon the tests for

independence set forth in NI 52-110 Maharnadou Keita Robert Veiteh and Scott Hean arc independent Willis

Osborne is not independent as he is the President and CEO of the Company Victor Jones is not independent as he

is the Chairman and CFO of the Company

Management Supervision by Board

lhe operations of the Company do not support large Board of Directors and the Board has detennined that the

current constitution of the Board is appropriate for the Companys current stage of development Independent

supervision
of management is accomplished through choosing management sho demonstrate high les el of

integrit and ability and having strong independent Board members The independent Directors are howeser able
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to meCt at an\ time ssithout an members of management including the non-independent Directors being present

Further supervision is performed through the audit committee shieh is composed of majonty of independent

Directors sho meet with the Cumpans auditors ssithout management being in attendance

Participation of Directors in Other Reporting Issuers

The participation of the Directors in other reporting issuers is described in the table
pros

ided under Election o2

Directors in this information Circular

Orientation and Continuing Education

Wluie the Company does not have format orientation and
training programs new Board members are pros

ded

ssitls

access to recent publicl filed documents of the Company technical reports and the Companys internal

financial information

access to management and technical experts and consultants and

summary of significant corporate and securities responsibilities

Board members are encouraged to communicate with management auditors and technical consultants to keep

themselves current with industry trends and developments and changes in legislation with managements assistance

and to attend related
industry seminars and visit the Compass operations Board members have full access to the

Companys records

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board views good corporate governance as an integral component to the success of the Company and to meet

responsibilities to shareholders The Board has adopted Cede of Conduct that is posted on its sebsite and has

instructed its management and emploees to abide by the Code

Nomination of Directors

The Board has responsibilit for
identifying potential Board candidates The Board assesses potential Board

candidates to fill perceived needs on the Board for required skills expertise independence and other fhctors

Members of the Board and
representatives of the mineral exploration industry are consulted for possible candidates

Compensation of Directors and the CEO

The independent Directors are Mahamadou Keita Robert Veitch and Scott Hean These Directors have the

responsibility for determining compensation for the Directors and senior management

To determine compensation paable the independent Directors review compensation paid for Directors and CEOs

of companies of similar size and stage of development in the mineral exploration industry and determine an

appropriate compensation reflecting the need to provide meentise and compensation for the time and effort

expended by the Directors and senior management while taking into account the financial and other resourees of the

Compan lit
setting the compensation the independent Directors annuall revies the performance of the CEO in

light of the Companys objectives and consider other factors that may have impacted the success of the Compan in

achies ng its objectives

Board Committees

As the Directors are actis ely ins olsed in the operations of the Compans the Board has determined that time standing

committees at this stage of the Companys development shall be the audit corismittee and the Noninatin amid

Corporate Gos emamice Committee

Assessments

The Board does not consider that formal assessments would be useful at this stage of the Compais des elopmnt

The Board conducts informal annual assessments of the Boards effecttveness the individual Directors and each of

is committees To assist in its res mew th Board conducts informal surse\ of its Directors r_ccms es an annual

report from the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee on Its assessment of th functioning
of tli

Board and reports from each committee respecting its owim effectiveness As part of the asscssnsents the Board or

the individual committee may rev ievv their respective mandate or charter and conduct revmevss of applicable

corporate policies

udit omnm lice

The Audit Committees Charter

Main/ott

The primary function of the audit committee the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling Its

financial oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial reports and other financial information provklcd

the Company to regulators authorities and shareholders the Companys systems of internal controls regarding

finance and accounting and the Compans auditing accounting and financial reporting processes Consistent svith

this ftuisctioim the Committee ivill encourage continuous improvement of and should foster adherence to the

Compan policies procedures and practices at all levels The Committees primary duties and responsibilites arc

to

Serve as an independent and objective parts to monitor the Companys financial reporting
and internal

control stem and review the Companys financial statements

Rev iesv and appraise the performance of the Companys external auditors

Provide an open avenue of communication among the Companys auditors financial and senior

management and the Board of Directors

Composition

The Committee shall be comprised of three Directors as determined the Board of Directors the
majority

of

vvhom shall be free from any relationship that in the opinion of the Board of Directors yvinild interfere vvith the

exercise of his or her independent judgment as member of the Committee

At least one member of the Committee shall have accounting or related financial management e\pertms kll

members of the Committee that are not financially literate will svork tossards becoming financially
literate to obtain

working familiarity with basic finance and accounting practices For the purposes of the Companys Charter the

definition of fmanciall literate is the ability to read and understand set of financial statements that
preseit

breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that arc generally comparable to the breadth aisd complexity of

the issues that cami presumably be expected to be raised by the Companys financial statements

The members of the Committee shall be elected by the Board of Directors at Its first m.etmng foltoss ing
the iiiiial

shareholders meeting Unless Chair is elected by the full Board of Directors the members of the Consmitto. may

designate Chair inajorit vote of the full Committee inenibership



11 12

Meetings Committee who are members of the Board of Directois to whom authority to grant such appro ais

has buen delegated by the Committee

The Committee shall meet least twice annually or more frequently as circumstances dictate As part of its job to

foster open communication the Committee insets at least annually with the CFO and the external auditors in Provided the pre-approval of the non-audit services is presented to the Consmittees first scheduled meeting

separate sessions
fbllowing such approal such authority may be ddsgated by the Committee to one or more independent

rnemherc of the Committee

Responsibilities and Deeies

Financ Reporting Processes

To fulfill its responsibilities and duties the Committee shall

In consultation ith the external auditors review with management the integrit of the Companys financial

Documeistsgp9flgyie\\ reporting process both internal and external

Consider the external auditors judgments about the quality and appropriateness of the Cornpiii
Review and update this Charter annually

accounting principles as applied in its financial reporting

Review the Companys financial statements MDA and any annual and interim earnings press
releases Consider and approve if appropriate changes to the Companys auditing and accounting principles and

before the Company publicly discloses this information and any reports or other financial information
practices as suggested by the external auditors and management

including quarterly financial statements which are submitted to any governmental body or to the public
Review significant judgments made by management in the preparation of the financial statements and the

including any certification report opinion or review rendered by the external auditors
view of the external auditors as to appropriateness of such judgments

External Auditors
Following completion of the annual audit review

separately with management and the external auditors an

significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit including any restrictions on the scope of
Review annually the performance of the external auditors who shall be ultimately accountable to the Board nork or access to required information
of Directors and the Committee as representatives of the shareholders of the Company

Review any significant disagreement among management and the external auditors in connection ith the
Obtain annually formal written statement of external auditors setting forth all

relationships between the
preparation

of the financial statements
external auditors and the Company consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard

Review with the external auditors and management the extent to hich changes and improvements in

Review and discuss with the external auditors any disclosed
relationships or services that may impact the

financial or accounting practices have been implemented
objectivity and independence of the external auditors

Review any complaints or concerns about any questionable accounting internal accounting controls or

Take or recommend that the full Board of Directors take appropriate action to oversee the independence
auditing matters

of the external auditors

Review certification process
Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection and where applicable the replacement of the external

auditors nominated annually for shareholder approval
Establish procedure for the confidential anoninous submission by employees of the Company of

concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters
At each meeting consult with the external auditors without the presence of management about the quality

of the Companys accounting principles internal controls and the completeness and accuracy of the fther

Companys financial statements

Review any related-party transactions
Review and approve the Companys hiring policies regarding partners employees and former partners and

employees of the present and former external auditors of the Company
Composition of the Audit Committee as at the date of the Information Circular

Review with management and the external auditors the audit plan for the year-end financial statements and

intended template for such statements The following arc the members of the Committee

Review and pre-approve all audit and audit-related services and the fees and other cornpensation related
Victor i.E Jones Not independent Financially liteiatc

thereto and any non-audit services provided by the Company external auditors The pre-approval
Scott Hean Independent Financially

literate

requirement is waived with
respect to the

provision
of non-audit services if

Robert Veitch Independent Financially literate

the aggregate amount of all such non-audit services provided to the Company constitutes not more As defined NI 52-lit

than five percent of the total amount of revenues paid by the Company to its external auditors

dunng the fiscal year in which the non-audit services are provided Audit Committee Member Education and Experience

ii such services were not recognized by the Company at the time of the engagement to be non-audit
Victor J.E Jones B.Sc MBA has served as senior executive and Board member of several publicl traded

services and
mineral exploration compaisies trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange and Venture Exchange has served as

iii such services are promptly brought to the attention of the Committee by the Company and Board member of public companies since 1982 with experience on audit governance and nominating comnuttecs

approved prior to the completion of the audit by the Committee or bs one or more members of the His background includes public financing and venture capital providing him with experience in the preparation and
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res co of financial statements pro forma estimates and operating control systems and the direction of accounting

staff His experience as senior executise of pus ate and public companies as sell as government funded agenc
has

pros
uded full

appreciation of good business practices accounting procedures and the increased focus on

Board effectiseness and corporate gosernance

Robert Veitch has been actively involved uith sales and marketing within the automotive uidustr for the last thirt

sears As President of his ovrn consulting compauiv he has had contracts with numerous manuflhcturers and their

dealers His major task is to assist the deajer netssork to become more protitable not onl revenue but also

cost control standpoint His area of
expertise is centered on companies with an excess of $40000000 in sales and

staff in excess of 100 employees His experience fuil qualifies him as member of the audit committee

Scott Hean BA. MBA ICD.D has held senior management and executive positions ssith Morgan of Ness

York
primarily financing junior oil and gas companies and Bank of Montreal as Senior Vice President and

Managing Director responsible for financing in the natural resources sectors in North Amenca Currently he is

the CFO of Quaterra Resources Inc traded on the TSX Venture Exchange and AMEX and is Director and
past

Chair of the audit committee of Sabina Silver Corporation SBB on the TSX Venture Exchange He was past

Chair of the audit committee of Bill Reid Foundation Services Ltd He has served on numerous not-for-profit

Boards including Outward Bound and B.C Childrens Hospital Graduating from Simon Fraser Universits in

1173 and from the ivey School of Business London Ontario in 1975 Mr Hean graduated in 2006 from the

institute of Corporate Directors Directors Education Program

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the Companys most recently completed financial year was

recommendation of the Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Board of

Directors

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

At no time since the commencement of the Companys most recently completed financial year has the Company
relied on the exemption in Section 2.4 of NI 52-ito De Minimis Non-audit Services or an exemption from NI

52-hO in whole or in part granted under Part ofNl 52-110

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Committee has adopted specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit services as described

above under the heading External Auditors

External Auditors Service Fees By Category

The aggregate fees billed by the Companys external auditors in each of the last two fiscal
years for audit fees are

as follows

anca/Y Ri.laidFeis rhT

Exemption in Section 6.1 of Ni 52-110

Expectations of M9Jsp2ement

The Board expects management to operate the business of the Compan in manner that enhances shareholder

value and is consistent vsith the highest level of integrity Management is expected to execute the Compan
business plan and to meet performance goals

and
objectives

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Cancellation of Outstanding Incentive Options and Granting of New incentive Options to Insiders of

the Company

As consequence of recent market conditions the Company has agreed subject to regulators and shareholder

approval with all insiders and their associates abstaining from voting to approve the cancellation of outstanding

options and the granting of new incentive options to insiders of the Company as sct out beloss

Vane

Date of

dii on

and Grant

Secg
Under

Opsituu

Cancelled

and

Grgnfe8

Markat Price

of Secungia

at Tsa.e of

Cwicelimiun/

Jng

5/Security

Exercsse

Price of

Cqac4jrd

Options

5/Security

New

Erecize

Price

S/Security

Length of

Original Option

Tang of

Cwce/Jed

Options

Eapiy Date of

New Options

Willis Osborne Dec 302008 20000 30.025 50.65 $0 40 Oct Dcc 30 2013

SwrikulTeiit

Ventures Lid

Dec 3t2005 80000 $0025 $0.65 0.10 Nov 262009 Dcc 302043

60000 $0025 $0.80 3010 Apr 48 24

150000 $0025 $065 $0 40 June 112012 Dcc 30 2041

Victor Jones Dec 30 2008 20000 30.025 $0.65 $0 II Nov 262009 Dec 30 2013

200000 30.025 $0.65 $010 June Dec 302013

Ellesuncrc

EntorptisesLld

Dec 30 2008 45.000 $0025 $080 $0 10 Apr IS 2011 Dcc 30 2013

Mahamadou Keila Dcc 30 2008 $43 025 31 65 $4 It Oct 212010 Dcc 10 2013

75000 50.025 $0.80 3010 Apr IS 2011 Dcc 30 2013

450010 50.025 $0.65 $0.40 Jine 122011 Dcc 30 2013

Robert VitcIu Dec 302009 400000 30.025 $0.65 $0.10 Nov 262009 Dcc 30 2043

20000 30.025 $0.90 $0.10 Apr 182044 Dcc 30 2013

80000 50.025 50.65 $0.10 June 412012 13cc 30 20i3

Scott Bean Dcc 302009 400000 50.025 064 34 40 May 302042 Dec 30 2143

40000 $0025 $iJ5 $4110 June 112012 Dcc 50 2043

JetunferNestoruk Dec 30 2008 30000 $0025 $045 300 Nov 262t09 Dcc 14 201t

15000

2Q
50.025

$0025

30.91

$065

$14 40

$010 June 112042

2013

13cc 302041

TOTAL 1285000

Swulcurrent Vesstvires Ltd isa pnvate company wtiollv-ounsed Mr Willis Osborse

Eliesisiene Enterpuses Ltd is private company wholly owned by Mr Victor Jones

For the purposes hereof an insider is Director or sensor officer of the Company Director or senior officer of

company that is itself an insider or subsidiary of the Company or person whose control or direct or indirect

beneficial ovsiiership or combination thereof over securities of the Company extends to securities carrying more

than 10% of the voting rights attached to all the Companys outstanding soting secunties

Accordingly at the Meeting shareholders other than insiders and their associates vviil be asked to pass

resolution in the following form

The Coiupan is relying on the exemption in Section of NI 52-i 10 from the
requirensent

of Parts

Composition of the Audit Committee and Reporting Obligations
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UPON MOTION IT WAS RESOLVED as an ordinary resolution that

the cancellation of outstanding stock options be and is hereby approved and the grant of

new options
by the Company to insiders as set out above be and is hereby authorszed at

price of $0.10 per share expiring December 30 2013 and

any Director or officer of the Compan be and is herebs authorized to execute and deli er

in the name of and on behalf of the Company all such certificates instruments

agreements notices and other documents and to do all such other acts and things as in the

opinion of such person may be necessary or desirable in connection with the cancellation

and granting of incentive
options

and the performance by the Compan of its obligations

thereunder

Adoption of Stock Option Plan

The Board of Directors of the Company adopted new stock option plan the Stock Option Plan effectis April

2009 subject to acceptance by the TSX Venture Exchange and the shareholders of the Company This Stock

Option Plan is similar to the Companys previous plan and is being adopted to ensure the Stock Option Plan

complies with current TSX Venture Exchange policy

The purpose of the Stock Option Plan is to allow the Company to grant options to Directors officers einplo ecs

and consultants as additional compensation and as an opportunity to participate
in the success of the Company

The granting of such options is intended to align the interests of such persons with that of the shareholders Options

i1l be exercisable over periods of up to 10 years as determined by the Board of Directors of the Compan and arc

required to have an exercise
price no less than the closing market price of the Companys shares

prevailing on the

day that the
option is granted less discount of up to 25% the amount of the discount varying with market price in

accordance with the policies of the TSX Venture Exchange Pursuant to the Stock Option Plan the Board of

Directors may from time to time authonze the issue of options to Directors officers employees and consultants of

the Company and its subsidiaries or employees of companies providing management or consulting services to the

Company or its subsidiaries The maxunum number of common shares which may be issued pursuant to options

previously granted and those granted under the Stock Option Plan will be maximum of 10% of the issued and

outstanding common shares at the time of the grant In addition the number of shares which may be reserved for

issuance to an one individual may not exceed 5% of the issued shares on yearly basis or 2% if the optionee is

engaged in investor relations activities or is consultant The Stock Option Plan contains no vesting requirements

but
permits the Board of Directors to specify vesting schedule in its discretion

ADDITiONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Cornpan is on SEDAR at www .sedar corn Shareholders may contact the

Company at Suite 515 475 Hosee Street Vancouser B.C V6C 2B3 to request copies
of the Companys financial

statements and MDA

Financial information is pros
ided in the Companys comparative financial statements and MDA for its most

recently completed financial ear which are filed on SEDAR

OTHER MATTERS

Management of the Company is not aware of any othcr matter to come befoic the Meeting other than as set form iii

the notice of Meeting If any other matter properly comes before thc Meeting it is the intention of the persons

named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote the shares represented thereby in accordance with their best judgment

on such matter

DATED this 24 day of April 2009

APPROVED BY ThE BOARD OF DIRFCTORS

WILLIS OSBORNE

WILLIS OSBORNE

President

The Stock Option Plan pros ides that if change of control as defined therein occurs all shares subject to option

shall immediately become vested and may thereupon be exercised in whole or in part by the option holder

The full text of the Stock Option Plan is available for viewing up to the date of the Meeting at the Company
offices at Suite 515 475 Howe Street Vancouver Bntish Columbia V6C 2B3 and will also be available for

res ics at the Meeting

Unless such authority is withheld the persons named in the enclosed Proxy intend to vote for the approval of

the Stock Option Plan

At the Meeting shareholders will be asked to pass resolution in the following form

UPON MOTION IT WAS RESOLVED that the Company do approve subject to
regulators approval

the adoption of Stock Option Plan pursuant to which the Directors may from time to time authorize the

issuance of options to Directors officers employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries to

maximum of 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares ax the time of the grant with maximum

of 5% of the Companys issued and outstanding shares being reserved to any one person on yearly basis



Proxy

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF Resolutions For full detail of each item please see the enclosed Notice of Meeting and

GREAT QUEST METALS LTD the Company TO BE HELD Information Circular

AT 10TH FLOOR 595 HOWE STREET VANCOUVER B.C For Against

ON TUESDAY JUNE 16 2009 AT 130 PM the Meeting Todetennine the number of Directors atfive ________ _______

The undersigned member Registered Shareholder of the Company hereby For Withhold

appoints Willis Osborne Director of the Company or failing this person Victor J.E
To elect as Director WILLIS OSBORNE _________ ________Jones Director of the Company or in the place of the foregoing

_____________________________ as proxyholder for and on behalf of the Registered To elect as Director VICTOR i.E JONES
__________ __________Shareholder with the power of substitution to attend act and vote for and on behalf of the

Registered Shareholder in respect of all matters that may properly come before the Meeting of To elect as Director MAHAMADOU KEITA
__________ __________

the Registered Shareholders of the Company and at every adjournment thereof to the same
To elect as Director ROBERT VEITCH

__________ __________extent and with the same powers as if the undersigned Registered Shareholder were present at

the said Meeting or any adjournment thereof To appoint MacKay LLP as auditors of the Company _________ _________

The Registered Shareholder hereby directs the proxyholder to vote the securities of the

For Against
Company registered in the name of the Registered Shareholder as specified herein

To approve the cancellation of outstanding incentive optionn

The undersigned Registered Shareholder hereby revokes any proxy previously given to and the granting of new incentive options to insiders of the

attend and vote at said Meeting Company __________ __________

SIGN HERE
___________________________________________

To approve adoption of new Stock Option Plan __________ __________
To iransact such other business as may properly come before

Please Print Name ____________________________________
the Meeting ________ ________

Date _______________________________________________

Number of Shares Represented by Proxy

THIS PROXY FORM IS NOT VALID UNLESS ITIS SIGNED AND DATED

SEE IMPORTANT INFORMA TIONAND INSTRUCTIONS ON REERSE
Affix label here



iNSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF PROXY

This Proxy is solicited by the Management of the Company

This form of proxy Cinstrument of Proxy must be signed by you the Registered Shareholder or by your attorney duly authorized by you in writing or in the case of

corporation by duly authorized officer or representative of the corporation and executed by an attorney officer or other duly appointed representative the original or

notanal copy of the instrument so empowering such person or such other documentation in support as shall be acceptable to the Chairman of the Meeting must

accompany the Instrument of Proxy

If this Instrument of Proxy is not dated in the space provided authority is hereby given by you the Registered Shareholder for the proxyholder to date this proxy seven

calendar days after the date on which it was mailed to you the Registered Shareholder by the Company

Registered Shareholder who wishes to attend the Meeting and vote on the resolutions in person may simply register with the scrutineers before the Meeting begins

Registered
Shareholder who is not able to attend the Meeting in person but wishes to vote on the resolutions may do the following

appoint one of the management proxyholders named on the Instrument of Proxy by leaving the wording appointing nominee as is i.e do not strike out the

management proxyholders shown and do not complete the blank
space provided for the appointment of an alternate proxyholder Where no choice is specified

by Registered Shareholder with respect to resolution set out in the Instrument of Proxy management appointee acting as proxyholder will vote in

favour of each matter identified on this Instrument of Proxy and for the nominees of management for directors and auditor as identified in this Instrument

of Proxy

OR

appoint
another proxyholder who need not be Registered Shareholder of the Company to vote according to the Registered Shareholders instructions by striking out

the management proxyholder names shown and inserting the name of the person you wish to represent you at the Meeting in the space provided for an alternate

proxvholder If no choice is specified the proxyholder has discretionary authority to vote as the proxyholder sees fit

The securities represented by this Instrument of Proxy will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the instructions of the Registered Shareholder on any

poll of resolution that may be called for and if the Registered Shareholder specifies choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon the securities will be voted

accordingly Further the securities will be voted by the appointed proxyholder with respect to any amendments or variations of any of the resolutions set out on the

Instrument of Proxy or matters which may properly come before the Meeting as the proxyholder in its sole discretion sees fit

If Registered Shareholder has submitted an Instrument of Proxy the Registered Shareholder may still attend the Meeting and may vote in person To do so the Registered

Shareholder must record his/her attendance with the scrutineers before the commencement of the Meeting and revoke in writing the prior votes

To be represented at the Meeting this
proxy form must be received at the office of the Company by mail or kvfax no later than forty eight 48 hours excluding Saturdays Sundays and holidays

prior the time of the Meeting or adjournment thereof or may be accepted by the Chairman of the Meeting prior to the commencement of the Meeting The mailing address is

Great Quest Metals L1L

Suite 515 475 Howe Street

ancouver BC J6C 2B3

Fax 604 684-5854



GREAT QUEST
METALS LTD

Request for Financial Statements

In accordance with securities regulations shareholders are given the opportunity to elect annually to

have their name added to the Issuers supplemental mailing list in order to receive annual financial

statements and MDA and ii interim financial statements and MDA of the Issuer The documents

will be accessible under the Issuers profile at www.sedar.com However if you wish to receive any

such mailings please check the applicable box below

NAME

wish to receive annual financial statements and Ml

wish to receive interim financial statements and MD

ADDRESS

COMPLETE AND RETURN TifiS FORM TO

Great Quest Metals Ltd

515 475 Howe Street

Vancouver BC
V6C 2B3

POSTAL CODE

confirm that am the BENEFICIAL owner of

Issuer Common/Preferred

shares ofthe

confirm that am the REGISTERED owner of

Issuer Common/Preferred

shares of the

SIGNATURE OF

SHAREHOLDER DATE

CUSIP 390912103


